
 
 

 

 

26 February 2020 

At 5.00 pm 

 

Local Planning Panel 
 

 
 



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 

  

Agenda 
  

 

 

1.   Confirmation of Minutes 

2.   Disclosures of Interest 

3.   Development Application: 397 Glebe Point Road, Glebe - D/2019/1325 

4.   Development Application: Various Sites - 21-21A Hickson Road, 23 Hickson Road, 
4030 Hickson Road, 4020 Towns Place Millers Point, 3-5 Pottingers Street Dawes 
Point - D/2019/1074 

5.   Report to the Local Planning Panel - Status of Applications 

 



 

 

 
 

Disclaimer, Terms and Guidelines for 
Speakers at the Local Planning Panel 
As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to 
Members of the Local Planning Panel (LPP) about items on a meeting agenda. 

Webcast  

In accordance with the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and the City of Sydney 
Local Planning Panel Operational Procedures, LPP meetings are audio visually recorded and 
webcast live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.  

Members of the public attending a LPP meeting may have their image, voice and personal 
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived. 

Consent  

By attending a LPP meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and 
personal information.  

Disclaimer 

Statements made by individuals at a LPP meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream 
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City/LPP. To 
be clear, unless set out in a resolution, the City/LPP does not endorse or support such 
statements. 

The City/LPP does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals 
during LPP meetings that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive 
comments. Such statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of 
legal proceedings and potential liability, for which the City/LPP takes no responsibility. 

To enable the LPP to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available, 
we encourage people interested in speaking at meetings to: 

1. Register to speak by calling Secretariat on 9265 9310 or emailing 
secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au before 12.00 noon on the day of the meeting. 

2. Check the recommendation in the LPP report before speaking, as it may address your 
concerns so that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation. 

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker and prepare your 
presentation to cover your major points within that time. 

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information 
that the LPP may not already know. 

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate 
three representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are 
representing. 

At the start of each LPP meeting, the Chair may re-order agenda items so that those items with 
speakers can be dealt with first. 

LPP reports are on line at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au with printed copies available at Sydney 
Town Hall immediately prior to the meeting. City staff are also available prior to the meeting to 
assist. 

http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/


Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Confirmation of Minutes 

Minutes of the following meeting of the Local Planning Panel, which have been endorsed by 
the Chair, are submitted for noting: 

Meeting of 5 February 2020 

1

Item 1.



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Disclosures of Interest 

Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 15 of Schedule 4B of the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act 1979, members of the Local Planning Panel are required to disclose 
pecuniary interests in any matter on the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel. 

Panel members are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on 
the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel. 

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed. 

In accordance with section 4.9 of the Code of Conduct for Local Planning Panel Members, 

all Panel members are required to sign a declaration of interest in relation to each matter on 

the agenda. 

1

Item 2.



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Development Application: 397 Glebe Point Road, Glebe - D/2019/1325 

File No.: D/2019/1325 

Summary 

Date of Submission: 20 November 2019 

Applicant: Mrs Alison Olivia McKeown 

Architect/Designer: Long Blackledge 

Developer: N/A 

Owner: Mrs Alison Olivia McKeown 

Cost of Works: $10,000 

Zoning: R1 General Residential Zone 

Proposal Summary: The subject application seeks consent for alterations and 
additions to an existing dwelling house at 397 Glebe Point 
Road, Glebe. The proposal seeks consent for the 
construction of a new brick rear wall to the rear lane 
(Charlton Way) and installation of new vehicular access 
roller door. 

The application is reported to the Local Planning Panel for 
determination as the applicant/land owner of the site is a 
relative of a member of council staff who is principally 
involved in the exercise of council's functions under the 
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

The application was notified for a 14 day period between 3 
December 2019 and 18 January 2020. As a result, no 
submissions were received. 

The proposal has been assessed as being generally 
consistent with the planning controls applicable to the site 
and is recommended for approval, subject to the imposition 
of conditions. 

  

1

Item 3.



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Summary Recommendation: The development application is recommended for 
approval, subject to conditions. 

Development Controls: (i) Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney 
Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed SEP) 

(ii) Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 

(iii) Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 

Attachments: A. Recommended Conditions of Consent 

B. Selected Drawings 

  

2



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2019/1325 subject 
to the conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report. 

Reasons for Recommendation 

The application is recommended for approval for the following reasons: 

(A) The proposed development is consistent with Section 4.15 of the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Act 1979, in that it achieves the objectives of the planning 
controls for the site and does not result in adverse environmental impacts for the 
reasons outlined in this report. 

(B) The proposal is consistent with the objectives of the R1 General residential zone, and 
will have an acceptable impact on neighbouring amenity. 

(C) The proposal complies with Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 Clause 4.3 Height 
of Buildings control. 

(D) The proposal does not adversely impact on the  heritage significance of the 
conservation area and nearby heritage items. 

(E) For the reasons above and as outlined in this report, the proposed development is in 
the public interest. 

  

3



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Background 

The Site and Surrounding Development 

1. A site visit was carried out by staff on 15 January 2020. 

2. The site has a legal description of Lot 1 in DP 939937, and is known as 397 Glebe 
Point Road, Glebe. 

3. The site is rectangular in shape with area of approximately 468m2. It has a primary 
street frontage to Glebe Point Road and a secondary street frontage to Charlton Way. 
A single storey freestanding house is contained within the site, with a two storey 
extension to the rear. There is an existing 2.28m high rear wall to the rear lane 
(Charlton Way), with a roller door providing access to a vehicle parking space in the 
rear yard. 

4. Surrounding land uses are predominantly residential, to the north, west and east. A 
commercial premises lies directly to the south. 

5. The site is a heritage item, known as House Group "Ilfracombe" and "Penzance" 
including interiors and front fencing (I768). The site is located within the Glebe Point 
Road Conservation Area (CA29). 

6. Photos of the site and surrounds are provided below: 

 

Figure 1: Aerial image of subject site and surrounding area 

 

4



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

 

Figure 2: Site viewed from Glebe Point Road at the front 

 

Figure 3: Site viewed from Charlton Way at the rear, looking south west 

Site 

5



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

 

Figure 4: Street scene and site viewed from Charlton Way at the rear, looking south west 

 

Figure 5: Street scene and site viewed from Charlton Way at the rear, looking north west 

Site 

Site 

6



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Proposal 

7. The application seeks consent for: 

(i) Demolition of part of the existing rear wall and roller door to Charlton Way. 

(ii) Construction of a new brick rear boundary wall to Charlton Way. The height 
of the wall will remain the same, at 2.28m, and will be painted Resene 
'Drab' to match the existing wall. 

(iii) Replacement of the roller door with a new  Colorbond roller door with an 
increased clearance height. The roller door head unit will have a maximum 
height of 2.7m, raised from the existing height of 2.28m.  The clearance 
height for vehicles will be 2.2m. The roller door will be coloured 'Pale 
Eucalypt' to match the existing roller door. 

8. Drawings of the proposed development are provided below. 

 

Figure 6: Existing plan 

7



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

 

Figure 7: Existing rear wall elevation (Charlton Way) 

 

Figure 8: Proposed plan 

 

Figure 9: Proposed rear wall elevation (Charlton Way) 

8



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

History Relevant to the Development Application 

9. On 23 July 2019, a heritage works application for the replacement of the wall and roller 
door was refused as the works were not considered to be minor works as required 
under the provisions of Clause 5.10 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.  

10. The applicant was advised to submit a development application. 

Economic/Social/Environmental Impacts 

11. The application has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning 
and Assessment Act 1979, including consideration of the following matters: 

(a) Environmental Planning Instruments and DCPs. 

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed 
SEPP) 

12. The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour 
and is subject to the provisions of the above SREP. 

13. The Sydney Harbour Catchment Planning Principles must be considered in the 
carrying out of development within the catchment. The key relevant principles include: 

(a) protect and improve hydrological, ecological and geomorphologic processes; 

(b) consider cumulative impacts of development within the catchment; 

(c) improve water quality of urban runoff and reduce quantity and frequency of urban 
run-off; and 

(d) protect and rehabilitate riparian corridors and remnant vegetation. 

14. The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into the 
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or 
adjacent to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved 
water quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed 
development. The development is consistent with the controls contained within the 
deemed SEPP. 

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 

15. The site is located within the R1 General Residential zone. The proposed use is 
defined as alterations and additions to a 'dwelling house', which is permissible with 
consent. The proposal is consistent with the objectives of the zone. 

16. The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 
for the proposed development are outlined below. 

9



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Compliance Tables 

Development Control Compliance Comment 

4.3 Height of Buildings Yes A maximum height of 9m is permitted. 

A height of 2.7m is proposed. 

4.4 Floor Space Ratio Yes A maximum FSR of 1:1 is permitted. 

The proposal does not alter the FSR of 
the site. 

5.10 Heritage conservation Yes The subject site is part of a group listing 
for 397-399 Glebe Point Road (Item No. 
I768), which is a local heritage 
itemwithin the Glebe Point Road 
heritage conservation area.  

The existing rear wall and roller door is 
not included as part of the group listing's 
significance. 

The rear wall is not an original feature, 
and the demolition, rebuilding, and 
installation of new taller roller door will 
not negatively impact on the setting of 
the host building or the character of the 
conservation area. 

 

Part 6 Local Provisions - 
Height and Floor Space  

Compliance Comment 

6.21 Design excellence Yes The proposed development satisfies the 
requirements of this provision. The 
works are consistent with the character 
and appearance of the laneway and do 
not adversely impact on the heritage 
significance of the dwelling or the 
conservation area.  

 
  

10



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Part 7 Local Provisions - 
General 

Compliance Comment 

Division 1 Car parking ancillary 
to other development 

7.4 Dwelling houses, attached 
dwellings and semi-detached 
dwellings 

Yes The site is located within Category C 
area for car parking. As such, a 
maximum of 2 car parking spaces are 
permitted for each dwelling. 

One car parking space is proposed. 

7.14 Acid Sulphate Soils Yes The site is identified as containing Class 
5 acid sulfate soil. Whilst the site is 
located within 500m of Class 1 and 2 
acid sulfate soils, the proposal does not 
involve significant excavation that would 
lower the water table. No special 
measures are required. 

7.15 Flood planning Yes The site is not identified as being 
affected by flooding. 

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 

17. The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 
for the proposed development are outlined below. 

2. Locality Statements – Glebe Point 

The subject site is situated in the Glebe Point locality. The proposed alteration to the rear 
wall is considered to be in keeping with the unique character of the area and design 
principles in that it maintains the heritage character of the area. 

 

3. General Provisions Compliance Comment 

3.5 Urban Ecology Yes The proposed development does not 
involve the removal of any trees and will 
not adversely impact on the local urban 
ecology. 

3.9 Heritage 

3.9.1 Heritage impact 
statements 

3.9.5 Heritage items 

3.9.6 Heritage conservation 
areas 

Yes The subject site is a heritage item within 
a heritage conservation area. The rear 
wall is not an original feature, and the 
demolition, rebuilding, and installation of 
a new taller roller door will not negatively 
impact on the setting of the host building 
or the character of the conservation 
area. 

11



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

3. General Provisions Compliance Comment 

 The proposed wall height, materials and 
colours are appropriate to the subject 
site and the character of the laneway. 

The level of documentation submitted 
with the application is commensurate 
with the scale of the works proposed. 
The application can be determined 
without the submission of a heritage 
impact statement in this instance, as the 
works meet the objectives of section 3.9 
Heritage of the DCP, do not affect 
heritage fabric, and do not materially 
alter the setting of the heritage item. 

 

4. Development Types 

4.1 Single dwellings, 
terraces and dual 
occupancies 

Compliance Comment 

4.1.1 Building height Yes A maximum of two storeys is permitted. 

The proposed development does not 
alter the number of stories on site. 

4.1.3 Residential amenity Yes 4.1.3.1 Solar Access 

The minor increase in the height of the 
roller door head unit in combination with 
the orientation of the site results in no 
overshadowing impacts on neighbouring 
properties. 

The proposal will not impact on 
neighbouring residential amenity, or on 
the amenity of the subject site. 

 

 

 

 

 

12



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

4. Development Types 

4.1 Single dwellings, 
terraces and dual 
occupancies 

Compliance Comment 

4.1.7 Fences 

4.1.7.2 Side and rear fences 

4.1.7.3 Heritage items and 
within heritage conservation 
areas 

Yes The height and design of the rear wall 
maintains the character of the street and 
conserves the setting of the heritage 
item. 

The proposed wall height of 2.28m is 
above the 1.8m height recommended by 
DCP provision 4.1.7.2. The wall height is 
acceptable in this instance as it 
responds to the character of the street, 
which contains walls and buildings 
consistently over 1.8m in height, and will 
have no amenity impacts. 

4.1.9 Car parking Yes The proposal does not change the size 
or location of the car parking space. The 
size, and location at the rear of the 
property accessed by Charlton Way, are 
appropriate to the site. 

 

Other Impacts of the Development 

18. The proposed development is capable of complying with the BCA. 

19. It is considered that the proposal will have no significant detrimental effect relating to 
environmental, social or economic impacts on the locality, subject to appropriate 
conditions being imposed. 

Suitability of the site for the Development  

20. The proposal is of a nature in keeping with the overall function of the site. The 
premises are in a residential surrounding and amongst similar uses to that proposed. 

Internal Referrals 

The application was discussed with the Heritage Specialists; who advised that the 
proposal is acceptable subject to the recommended conditions. 

  

13



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

External Referrals 

Notification, Advertising and Delegation 

21. In accordance with the City of Sydney Community Participation Plan 2019, the 
proposed development is required to be notified. As such the application was notified 
for a period of 14 days between 3 December 2019 and 18 January 2020. As a result of 
this notification a total of 103 properties were notified and no submissions were 
received. 

Public Interest 

22. It is considered that the proposal will have no detrimental effect on the public interest, 
subject to appropriate conditions being proposed. 

S7.11 Contribution 

23. The development is not subject to a S7.11 development contribution as it is for 
alterations and additions to an existing dwelling house which is a type of development 
listed in Table 2 of the City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015 and is 
excluded from the need to pay a contribution.  A contribution is therefore not payable. 

Relevant Legislation 

24. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

Conclusion 

25. The applicant seeks consent for alterations and additions to dwelling house comprising 
of the rebuilding of the rear boundary wall of the site and the provision of a new vehicle 
access roller door. 

26. The application was notified in accordance with the Sydney DCP 2012, and no 
submissions were received. 

27. The proposed rebuilding of the wall and replacement of the roller door are appropriate 
to the character of the laneway. The works will not adversely impact on the heritage 
significance of the existing dwelling or the conservation area. The works will not have 
any adverse  amenity impacts, and retains access to the existing on-site car parking 
space on the site. 

  

14



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

28. The proposal has been assessed as being consistent with the relevant planning 
legislation and policies applicable to the site and type of development. 

29. The application is recommended for approval, subject to the imposition of conditions. 

GRAHAM JAHN, AM 

Director City Planning, Development and Transport 

David Knight, Planner 

15



Attachment A 

Recommended Conditions of Consent

16



 

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT 

Note:  Some conditions are to be satisfied prior to issue of a Construction Certificate, some 
are to be satisfied prior to issue of Occupation Certificate and others during the course of 
construction. 

Prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate, sufficient information must be forwarded to 
the Principal Certifier (whether Council or a private accredited certifier) illustrating 
compliance with the relevant requirements of the Building Code of Australia and conditions 
of consent. If Council is to be the certifying authority, please contact the Building Unit to 
discuss the requirements prior to submission of the application for construction certificate. 

(1) APPROVED DEVELOPMENT 

(a) Development must be in accordance with Development Application 
No.D/2019/1325 dated 27 September 2019 and the following drawings 
prepared by: 

Drawing Number Drawing Name Date 

A200 rev C Plan and elevations 22.05.2019 

A202 rev C Details 22.05.2019 

 

and as amended by the conditions of this consent. 

(b) In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and 
supplementary documentation, the plans will prevail. 

(2) BUILDING WORKS TO COMPLY WITH BCA – HERITAGE BUILDINGS OR 
BUILDINGS WITHIN CONSERVATION AREA 

Any building works required to ensure compliance with the BCA or new building 
standards not specified in the submitted/approved plan must not damage existing 
fabric and building features. If such upgrading works have impact or potentially 
have impact on existing fabric and features, details of the works must be submitted 
and approved by Council’s Urban Design and Heritage Manager prior to issue of 
a Construction Certificate. 

(3) MATERIALS FOR MAKING GOOD 

New materials for making good and repairs, are to match the existing in terms of 
colours, finishes, sizes, profile and properties. 

 

17



 

(4) EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL - LESS THAN 250SQM 

Where less than 250 square metres are being disturbed, no formal plan is required 
however, the site is to be provided with sediment control measures and these must 
be implemented so that sediment, including soil, excavated material, building 
material or other materials cannot fall, descend, percolate, be pumped, drained, 
washed or allowed to flow to the street, stormwater system or waterways. 

(5) ENCROACHMENTS – NEIGHBOURING PROPERTIES 

No portion of the proposed structure shall encroach onto the adjoining properties. 

(6) ENCROACHMENTS – PUBLIC WAY 

No portion of the proposed structure, including gates and doors during opening 
and closing operations, shall encroach upon Council’s footpath area. 

(7) SURVEY 

All footings and walls adjacent to a boundary must be set out by a registered 
surveyor. On commencement of brickwork or wall construction a survey and report 
must be submitted to the Principal Certifier indicating the position of external walls 
in relation to the boundaries of the allotment. 

(8) ASSOCIATED ROADWAY COSTS 

All costs associated with the construction of any new road works including kerb 
and gutter, road pavement, drainage system and footway shall be borne by the 
developer. Any new road works must be designed and constructed in accordance 
with the City’s “Sydney Streets Technical Specification” including amendments 
and “Sydney Streets Design Code”. 

(9) COVERING OF LOADS 

All vehicles involved in the excavation and/or demolition process and departing 
the property with demolition materials, spoil or loose matter must have their loads 
fully covered before entering the public roadway. 

(10) LOADING AND UNLOADING DURING CONSTRUCTION 

All loading and unloading associated with construction activity must be 
accommodated on site. A Works Zone may be required if loading and unloading 
is not possible on site. If a Works Zone is warranted an application must be made 
to Council at least 8 weeks prior to commencement of work on the site. An 
approval for a Works Zone may be given for a specific period and certain hours of 
the days to meet the particular need for the site for such facilities at various stages 
of construction. The approval will be reviewed periodically for any adjustment 
necessitated by the progress of the construction activities. 

(11) NO OBSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC WAY 

The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, vehicles, refuse, skips or 
the like, under any circumstances.  Non-compliance with this requirement will 
result in the issue of a notice by Council to stop all work on site. 

18



 

(12) BARRICADE PERMIT 

Where construction/building works require the use of a public place including a 
road or footpath, approval under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 for a 
Barricade Permit is to be obtained from Council prior to the commencement of 
work.  Details of the barricade construction, area of enclosure and period of work 
are required to be submitted to the satisfaction of Council. 

(13) APPLICATION FOR HOARDINGS AND SCAFFOLDING ON A PUBLIC PLACE 

(a) A separate application under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 is to be 
made to Council to erect a hoarding and/or scaffolding (temporary 
structures) in a public place. 

(14) OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE TO BE SUBMITTED 

An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from the Principal Certifier and a copy 
submitted to Council prior to commencement of occupation or use of the whole or 
any part of a new building, an altered portion of, or an extension to an existing 
building. 

(15) HOURS OF WORK AND NOISE – OUTSIDE CBD 

The hours of construction and work on the development must be as follows: 

(a) All work, including building/demolition and excavation work, and activities in 
the vicinity of the site generating noise associated with preparation for the 
commencement of work (eg. loading and unloading of goods, transferring of 
tools etc) in connection with the proposed development must only be carried 
out between the hours of 7.30am and 5.30pm on Mondays to Fridays, 
inclusive, and 7.30am and 3.30pm on Saturdays, with safety inspections 
being permitted at 7.00am on work days, and no work must be carried out 
on Sundays or public holidays. 

(b) All work, including demolition, excavation and building work must comply 
with the City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 
and Australian Standard 2436 - 1981 Guide to Noise Control on 
Construction, Maintenance and Demolition Sites. 

Note:  The City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 
allows extended working hours subject to the approval of an application in 
accordance with the Code and under Section 4.55 of the Environmental Planning 
and Assessment Act 1979. 

 

19



 

SCHEDULE 2 

PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS 

The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 apply: 

Clause 98  Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements 
under the Home Building Act 1989 

Clause 98A Erection of signs 

Clause 98B Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements 

Clause 98C Conditions relating to entertainment venues 

Clause 98D Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage 

Clause 98E Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property 

Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 8A of the 
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. This can be accessed at: 
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au 

 

20



Attachment B 

Selected Drawings

21



2
14

5
13

4
5

2
7
10

2200

2280420

2200

7
4
5

420

5
0
0

80

A
2
6
.0

3
.1
9

D
R
A
F
T
 F

O
R
 C

O
M
M
E
N
T

7
0

6
0

5
0

4
0

3
0

2
0

10
0

10
m
m

L 
o 

n 
g 

   
B 

l a
 c

 k
 l 

e 
d 

g 
e  

  A
 r 

c 
h 

i t
 e

 c
 t

 s
Su

ite
 3

03
, V

al
ha

lla
 S

tu
di

os
, 1

66
 G

le
be

 P
oi

nt
 R

oa
d

GL
EB

E,
  N

SW
  2

03
7

Te
l: 

04
10

 4
01

 3
90

NS
W

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

 N
o.

 9
05

7
C
L
IE

N
T

P
R
O
J
E
C
T

S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E

R
E
V

39
7 

G
le

be
 P

oi
nt

 R
d

Te
d 

an
d 

A
lis

on
 M

cK
eo

w
n

N
ew

 re
ar

 w
al

l
P

la
n 

an
d 

el
ev

at
io

ns

C
M
A
Y
 1
9

1:
5
0

A
20

0

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
S

ca
le

 1
:5

0
1 --

R
E

A
R

 W
A

LL
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S
ca

le
 1

:5
0

2 --

A 20
1

20
1B

20
1

C

R
E

A
R

 W
A

LL
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

ca
le

 1
:5

0
3 --

P
ro

vi
de

 p
la

nt
er

E
xi

st
in

g 
ga

ra
ge

R
ep

la
ce

 e
xi

st
in

g 
br

ic
k 

w
al

l w
ith

ne
w

 b
ric

k 
w

al
l o

n 
ne

w
 fo

ot
in

g 
to

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 e

ng
in

ee
rs

 d
es

ig
n

Boundary

39
9

39
7

Boundary

P
ro

vi
de

 n
ew

co
lo

rb
on

d
co

at
ed

 ro
lle

r
do

or
 a

nd
 c

ov
er

E
xi

st
in

g 
op

en
in

g 
le

ve
l

FI
N

IS
H

E
S

:

G
ar

ag
e 

D
oo

r c
ol

ou
r C

ol
or

bo
nd

 'P
al

e 
E

uc
al

yp
t'

B
ric

k 
w

al
l p

ai
nt

ed
 R

es
en

e 
'D

ra
b'

E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d
ne

w
 b

ric
k 

w
or

k
pa

in
te

d

B
2
6
.0

4
.1
9

D
R
A
F
T
 F

O
R
 C

O
M
M
E
N
T

C
2
2
.0

5
.1
9

D
A
 A

P
P
L
IC

A
T
IO

N

@
A

3

22



2200

7
4
5

420

5
0
0

80

2200

2280420

A
2
6
.0

3
.1
9

D
R
A
F
T
 F

O
R
 C

O
M
M
E
N
T

7
0

6
0

5
0

4
0

3
0

2
0

10
0

10
m
m

L 
o 

n 
g 

   
B 

l a
 c

 k
 l 

e 
d 

g 
e  

  A
 r 

c 
h 

i t
 e

 c
 t

 s
Su

ite
 3

03
, V

al
ha

lla
 S

tu
di

os
, 1

66
 G

le
be

 P
oi

nt
 R

oa
d

GL
EB

E,
  N

SW
  2

03
7

Te
l: 

04
10

 4
01

 3
90

NS
W

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

 N
o.

 9
05

7
C
L
IE

N
T

P
R
O
J
E
C
T

S
C
A
L
E

D
A
T
E

R
E
V

39
7 

G
le

be
 P

oi
nt

 R
d

Te
d 

an
d 

A
lis

on
 M

cK
eo

w
n

N
ew

 re
ar

 w
al

l
D

et
ai

ls

C
M
A
Y
 1
9

1:
2
0

A
20

1

Ti
m

be
r s

tru
ct

ur
e

0.
48

m
m

 c
ol

or
bo

nd
st

ee
l c

ov
er

25
m

m
 g

al
va

ni
se

d
gu

id
es

N
ew

 m
as

on
ry

 w
al

l

0.
4m

m
 c

on
tin

uo
us

pr
es

se
d 

sq
ua

re
-li

ne
co

ve
r t

o 
ro

lle
r

m
ec

ha
ni

sm

G
A

T
E

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

ca
le

 1
:2

0
C --

D
oo

r d
ru

m
 s

up
po

rt
br

ac
ke

ts
. I

ns
ta

ll 
to

B
&

D
 s

ta
nd

ar
d

in
st

al
la

tio
n

pr
oc

ed
ur

es

G
ui

de
 s

up
po

rte
d 

by
st

ee
l p

os
t.

N
ew

 m
as

on
ry

 w
al

l.

5

55
25

m
m

 g
al

va
ni

se
d 

gu
id

es

0.
4m

m
 c

on
tin

uo
us

pr
es

se
d 

sq
ua

re
-li

ne
st

ee
l c

ur
ta

in
.

V
en

til
at

io
n 

in
 5

 s
la

tts
as

 b
as

e 
of

 d
oo

r

0.
4m

m
 c

on
tin

uo
us

pr
es

se
d 

sq
ua

re
-li

ne
st

ee
l c

ur
ta

in
.

G
U

ID
E

 P
LA

N
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
ca

le
 1

:2
0

A --
G

A
T

E
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

ca
le

 1
:2

0
B --

0.
4m

m
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 p
re

ss
ed

sq
ua

re
-li

ne
 s

te
el

 c
ur

ta
in

.

B
2
6
.0

4
.1
9

D
R
A
F
T
 F

O
R
 C

O
M
M
E
N
T

95
S

te
el

 p
os

t b
ac

k 
ja

m
bs

12
0m

m
 s

te
el

 p
os

t

C
2
2
.0

5
.1
9

D
A
 A

P
P
L
IC

A
T
IO

N

@
A

3

23



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Development Application: Various Sites (21-21A Hickson Road, 23 Hickson 
Road, 4030 Hickson Road, 4020 Towns Place Millers Point, 3-5 Pottingers 
Street Dawes Point) - D/2019/1074 

File No.: D/2019/1074 

Summary 

Date of Submission: 26 September 2019 

Applicant: Transfield Holdings 

Owner: Transfield Holdings and City of Sydney 

Cost of Works: $0 

Zoning: Zone 1 - Walsh Bay Conservation Zone. Retention of 7 existing 
art sculptures is permissible  with development consent. 

Proposal Summary: The subject development application seeks consent to retain 
existing approved sculptures on an ongoing basis. The effect of 
the application is to combine six separate development 
consents which granted approval for  the installation of seven  
public art sculptures, forming the Walsh Bay Sculpture Walk, 
into one development consent. The sculptures are located over 
various sites near the Walsh Bay Finger Wharves. No works or 
new sculptures are proposed. 

Two of the seven existing sculptures are located on public land 
where City of Sydney is the land owner.  While at the Local 
Planning Panel meeting of 23 May 2018, the LPP delegated to 
City officers the determination of Development Applications for 
which the Council is the applicant or land owner for the 
temporary installation of public art, in this instance consent is 
sought for the retention of the sculptures on an ongoing basis. 
Therefore the Development Application is required to be   
determined by the Local Planning Panel. 

The application was notified for a 30 day period between 3 
October 2019 and 4 November 2019. No submissions were 
received. 

 

 

1

Item 4.



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

The sites are located within the Walsh Bay Wharves Precinct 
area which is a State Heritage Item (00559) under the Heritage 
Act 1977. As such the application is integrated development. 
The Heritage Office have granted general terms of approval for 
the proposal. 

The proposal is generally compliant with relevant planning 
controls. 

The proposed development is supported as it is compliant with 
the requirements under the Sydney Regional Environmental 
Plan No 16 - Walsh Bay, Sydney DCP 2012 and the Heritage 
Act 1977. The site is not subject to assessment under the 
Sydney LEP 2012. 

Summary 
Recommendation: 

The development application is recommended for approval, 
subject to conditions. 

Development Controls: (i) Sydney Regional Environmental Plan No 16 -  Walsh Bay 
(Gazetted 16 June 1989, as amended) 

(ii) Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 

(iii) Heritage Act 1977 (Gazetted 12 June 1981, as amended) 

Attachments: A. Recommended Conditions of Consent 

B. Sculpture Location Plan  

  

2



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2019/1074 subject 
to the conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report. 

Reasons for Recommendation 

The application is recommended for approval for the following reason: 

(A) The proposal is generally consistent with requirements under the Sydney Regional 
Environmental Plan No. 16 - Walsh Bay, Sydney DCP 2012 and the Heritage Act 
1977. 

 

  

3



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Background 

The Site and Surrounding Development 

1. A site visit was carried out by staff on 4 November 2019. 

2. The existing public art sculptures are located on several publicly accessible properties 
in the Walsh Bay area.  These properties are 21-21A Hickson Road, 23 Hickson Road, 
3-5 Pottinger Street (owned by NSW Maritime but leased to Council), and the Council 
owned road sections known as 4020 Towns Place and 4030 Hickson Road. 

3. The ‘Walsh Bay Wharves Precinct’ is listed on the State Heritage Register (SHR 
00559) under the Heritage Act 1977. The buildings, including piers and shore sheds, 
have undergone conservation and adaptive re-use in accordance with the Walsh Bay 
Master Plan. 

4. 21 – 21A Hickson Road contains a seven storey waterfront residential building 
commonly known as "Shore Apartments 8/9". It has a southern street frontage to 
Hickson Road, with the northern boundary adjoining Sydney Harbour and the Walsh 
Bay ‘finger wharf’ known as Pier 8/9.  The location of the public art sculpture "Into the 
Trees II" is located on the publicly accessible northern forecourt of this site. Please 
refer to Figure 3. 

5. Pier 8/9 or 23 Hickson Road contains the adaptive reuse of the former Bond Store into 
commericial and retail uses. It forms the westernmost Walsh Bay ‘finger wharf’.  
Located on the publicly accessible wharf surrounding the former Bond Store are the 
public art sculptures "Red, Yellow, Blue", "Tri" and "Transnewfield". Please refer to 
Figures 4-6. 

6. 3-5 Pottinger Street is leased to Council by NSW Maritime, also known as Pottinger 
Park contains several trees, the existing public art sculpture "Three Sisters" and street 
furniture. Please refer to Figure 7. 

7. 4020 Towns Place is a road section at the junction of Towns Place and Hickson Road.  
The location of the public art sculpture "The Change" is on the public footpath outside 
the "Shore Apartments 8/9". Please refer to Figure 8. 

8. 4030 Hickson Road is a road section at the junction of Hickson Road and Pottinger 
Street.  The location of the public art sculpture "Still Life with Stone and Car" is in the 
centre of the roundabout, and two associated " Artwork" signs on the public footpaths. 
Please refer to Figure 9. 

  

4



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

9. Photos of the site and surrounds are provided below: 

 

Figure 1: Aerial image of subject site and surrounding area 

 

Figure 2: Sculpture location plan  

5



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

 

Figure 3: 'Into the Trees II' artwork viewed looking north from 21-21A Hickson Road. Refer to Point 1 
in Figure 2.  

 

Figure 4: 'Red, Yellow, Blue' artwork viewed looking south from the eastern side of 23 Hickson Road. 
Refer to Point 2 in Figure 2. 

6



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

 

Figure 5: 'Tri' artwork, viewed looking north-east along from the north-eastern wharf side of 23 
Hickson Road. Refer to Point 3 in Figure 2. 

 

Figure 6: 'Transnewfield' artwork viewed looking north from the western wharf side of 23 Hickson 
Road. Refer to Point 4 in Figure 2. 

7



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

 

Figure 7: 'Three Sisters' artwork viewed looking north east from Pottinger Park. Refer to Point 5 in 
Figure 2. 

 

Figure 8: 'The Change' artwork viewed looking north-east from outside 8 Windmill Street. Refer to 
Point 6 in Figure 2. 

8



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

  

Figure 9: 'Still Life with Stone and Car' artwork and two associated 'Artwork' signs viewed looking 
north-east from Hickson Road. Refer to Point 7 in Figure 2. 

Proposal 

10. The application seeks development consent to retain the existing approved sculptures 
in Walsh Bay (seen in Figures 3 to 9 above) on an ongoing basis. The effect of the 
application will be to consolidate the six existing development consents that approved  
seven public art sculptures  into one consent. The six existing development consents 
granted approval for the sculptures on a time limited basis and have different lapsing 
dates.  There are no physical works involved in this proposal.  

History Relevant to the Development Application 

11. On 10 April 2008, development consent D/2007/2441 was granted for the installation 
of an art sculpture on the roundabout on Hickson Road, at the intersection with 
Pottinger Street. The lapsing date of the original consent was the 10 April 2010. The 
application has subsequently been modified five times and the latest amendment 'E' 
will lapse on the 21 November 2021. Refer to Point 7 in Figure 2 and Figure 9 above. 

12. On 10 April 2008, development consent D/2008/166 was granted for the placement of 
three sculptures on the north east end of Pier 8/9 within the colonnade, near the main 
entrance of the Transfield office, Walsh Bay. The lapsing date of the original consent 
was the 10 April 2010. The application has subsequently been modified twice and the 
latest amendment 'B' will lapse on 28 May 2020. Refer to Point 2 in Figure 2 and 
Figure 4 above. 

9



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

13. On 21 April 2008, development consent D/2007/2440 was granted for the installation 
of two art sculptures on the footway at the intersection of Towns Place and Hickson 
Road; and at Pottinger Park (east), between Pottinger Street and Hickson Road. The 
lapsing date of the original consent was the 21 April 2010. The application has 
subsequently been modified twice and the latest amendment B will lapse on the 19 
May 2020. Refer to Points 5 and 6 of Figure 2 and  Figures 7 and 8 above. 

14. On 22 February 2011, development consent D/2011/72 was granted for the temporary 
installation of a sculpture named 'Tri' upon the north eastern corner of Pier 8/9 at 
Walsh Bay. The lapsing date of the original consent was the 22 February 2016.  The 
application has subsequently been modified twice and the latest amendment B will 
lapse on the 23 January 2023. Refer to Point 3 in Figure 2 and Figure 5 above. 

15. On June 2012, development consent D/2012/586 was granted for the installation of the 
sculpture "Into the Trees II" to promenade of Pier 8/9. The lapsing date of the original 
consent was the 13 June 2017.  The application has subsequently been modified once 
and the latest amendment A lapsed on the 13 June 2019. Refer to Point 1 in Figure 2 
and Figure 3 above. 

16. On 1 November 2017, development consent D/2017/1208 was granted for the 
installation of steel sculpture measuring 4200mm x 6100mm x 1200mm on the public 
promenade of Piers 8/9 for period of five years. The application will lapse on 1 
November 2022. Refer to Point 4 in Figure 2 and Figure 6 above. 

Economic/Social/Environmental Impacts 

17. The application has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning 
and Assessment Act 1979, including consideration of the following matters: 

(a) Environmental Planning Instruments and DCPs. 

Heritage Act 1977 

18. The subject site is listed as a heritage item on the State Heritage Register (SHR Item 
No. 00559) and is known as the Walsh Bay Wharves Precinct and is not a heritage 
item listed under Schedule 5 of the Sydney LEP 2012.  

19. As an Integrated Development Application requiring approval under the Heritage Act 
1977, a copy of the application was referred to NSW Heritage Council on 4 November 
2019 in accordance with Clause 66 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Regulation 2000.  

20. On 13 December 2019, the NSW Heritage Council provided General Terms of 
Approval (GTA’s) for the site. The entire proposal was generally supported with 
conditions. 

21. A full list of the General Terms of Approval can be read in full under Schedule 2 
attachment A Recommended Conditions of Consent. 

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan No 16 - Walsh Bay 

22. The Walsh Bay REP is the principal environmental planning instrument applying to the 
site.  The Walsh Bay REP is a 'deemed State Environmental Planning Policy'.   

10



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

23. The site is located under Zone 1 - Walsh Bay Conservation Zone. The proposal is 
permissible with consent. 

24. The proposal is consistent with the objectives of the zone in that the existing 
sculptures will not impact heritage significance, the sculptures will not detract from the 
financial, commercial and retail functions of the existing city central business district or 
Sydney Cove Redevelopment Area and the developments will not adversely impact 
residential amenity and function of sites. 

25. The relevant matters to be considered under the Walsh Bay REP for the proposed 
development are outlined below. 

Development Control Compliance Comment 

Cl. 13 Walsh Bay 
Conservation Zone 

Yes The proposal seeks to 
retain existing approved 
sculptures on an ongoing 
basis. In effect the 
application will consolidate 
6 consents into a single 
consent.  No works are 
proposed.  The proposal 
does not affect the 
heritage significance of 
the Zone. 

Cl. 15 Development 
control code 

Yes This clause allows the 
consent authority to 
prepare a development 
control code (or a 
development control plan).  
The provisions of this 
code (or DCP) must be 
considered in the 
assessment of a DA.  
Refer discussion further 
below. 

Cl. 16 Matters for 
consideration 

Yes Refer discussion below 

 

26. The matters of consideration under clause 16 of this planning instrument requires the 
consent authority to take into consideration the views of the Central Sydney Planning 
Committee (CSPC) and any conditions imposed by the Heritage Council under section 
63 of the Heritage Act 1977. The consent authority is also required to consider various 
historical guidelines and studies, public access to the wharf aprons and foreshore, the 
affects on Wharfs No 4 and 5 as a theatre complex and certain Maritime sites, and 
whether the traffic generated would have an adverse impact. 

27. The proposal was presented to the Central Sydney Planning Committee (CSPC) on 7 
November 2019. The CSPC had no comments or objections towards this proposal. 

11



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

28. The proposal is an integrated development application as it is located in the 'Walsh 
Bay Wharves Precinct' State Heritage Register (SHR Item No. 00559).  As noted 
earlier, the NSW Heritage Council provided GTAs for the development. 

29. The documents requiring consideration are the Walsh Bay Redevelopment 
Conservation Guidelines dated February 1988, the Walsh Bay Regional Environmental 
Study 1989, and the Central Sydney Strategy 1988.  The strategic context for the City 
has significant changed since these documents were published.  It is submitted that 
the most appropriate planning documents to consider is Sydney DCP 2012. 

30. The proposal does not involve any new works and will not affect the existing public 
access to the wharf aprons and foreshore, the continued use of Wharfs No. 4 and 5 as 
a theatre complex, and the use of Roads and Maritime Services sites.  In addition, the 
proposal will not generate any additional traffic compared to that existing. 

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed 
SEPP) 

31. The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour 
and is subject to the provisions of the above SREP. 

32. The Sydney Harbour Catchment Planning Principles must be considered in the 
carrying out of development within the catchment. The key relevant principles include: 

(a) protect and improve hydrological, ecological and geomorphologic processes; 

(b) consider cumulative impacts of development within the catchment; 

(c) improve water quality of urban runoff and reduce quantity and frequency of urban 
run-off; and 

(d) protect and rehabilitate riparian corridors and remnant vegetation. 

33. The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into the 
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or 
adjacent to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved 
water quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed 
development. The development is consistent with the controls contained within the 
deemed SEPP. 

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 

34. The Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 is not relevant for this proposed 
development as the sites are located outside the LEP boundary. 

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 

35. As noted earlier, the Walsh Bay SREP allows for the adoption of a development 
control code (or DCP). The land covered by Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 
includes the Walsh Bay area. 

36. The proposal is acceptable under the DCP Section 3.1.5 Public Art as the Council's 
Public Art Unit has reviewed and supports the consolidation of the existing consents 
for administrative purposes. The proposal maintains the number of exhibited public art 
sculptures and does not require any additional physical works.  

37. There are no other relevant controls in the DCP for this proposal. 

12



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Issues 

Conditions of Consent 

38. The proposal seeks to retain the existing previously approved structures on an 
ongoing basis. The effect of the proposal is essentially to combine 6 consents into one. 
Many of the conditions imposed on the previous development consents were related to 
physical works prior to the installation of the sculptures. These conditions are no 
longer relevant to any consent that is to be granted for the ongoing retention of the 
sculptures. 

39. The various previous consents were granted on a time limited basis (as discussed 
above). The consents were time limited to ensure the sculptures would not cause a 
nuisance to road users/pedestrians and  that they would be appropriately maintained. 
Given that the sculptures have now been in place for a number of years and the time 
limited consents have been routinely extended it is no longer considered necessary for 
a new consent to be time limited. 

40. Council's Public Art Unit has recommended a "Consent To Lapse" condition for a 
period of five years for all sculptures to allow the Public Art Unit to review and 
renegotiate artwork on public land, ensuring the artwork will be consistent with 
Council's Public Art Policy 2016, Public Art Strategy 2012 and the Acquisitions and 
Deaccessions Guidelines 2006.  

41. As mentioned above such a requirement is not considered necessary.  The Sydney 
DCP 2012 and the Walsh Bay REP do not have any controls or objectives to require a 
time limit for public art sculptures. The impact of the sculptures have previously been 
assessed and determined to be acceptable and previous consents have been 
extended.  

42. Should circumstances arise where Council no longer supports the art works that are 
located on public land, Council can take action as a landowner. In this regard a 
condition is recommended (as was the case on the previous consents) that an 
appropriate lease agreement to manage terms and conditions for placement of the 
sculptures on public land be entered into with Council.  

43. Other recommended conditions will include the requirement for the applicant to 
perform maintenance on the sculptures and to ensure any removal works damaging 
the public domain will be required to be rectified by the applicant. Unimpeded vehicular 
access must also be maintained during the removal of the sculptures on public land. 

Other Impacts of the Development 

44. It is considered that the proposal will have no significant detrimental effect relating to 
environmental, social or economic impacts on the locality, subject to appropriate 
conditions being imposed. 

Suitability of the site for the Development  

45. The proposal is suitable for the site.  

13



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Internal Referrals 

46. The application was discussed with the Public Art Unit and Public Domain Unit who 
advised that the proposal is acceptable subject to conditions. Where relevant, these 
conditions have been included in the recommendation.  

External Referrals 

Notification, Advertising and Delegation (No Submissions Received) 

47. The application constitutes integrated development and as such the application was 
notified and advertised for 30 days between 3 October 2019 and 4 November 2019 in 
accordance with the provisions of Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Regulations 2000. No submissions were received. 

48. As noted earlier, the NSW Heritage Council has been consulted and General Terms of 
Approval have been provided. 

Public Interest 

49. It is considered that the proposal will have no detrimental effect on the public interest, 
subject to appropriate conditions being proposed. 

S61 Contribution 

50. The sites are located outside of the land covered by  the Central Sydney Development 
Contributions Plan 2013.  There is no required contribution. 

Relevant Legislation 

51. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

52. Heritage Act 1977. 

53. Sydney Regional Environmental Plan No. 16 - Walsh Bay. 

  

14



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Conclusion 

54. The proposal is generally consistent with objectives and provisions of the SREP 16 - 
Walsh Bay, Sydney DCP 2012 and the Heritage Act 1977. The proposal does not 
involve physical works or changes to the existing public art sculptures. The proposal 
allows the applicant to better manage these sculptures administratively. 

55. Development application D/2019/1074 is recommended for approval subject to 
conditions. 

GRAHAM JAHN, AM 

Director City Planning, Development and Transport 

Harry Choi, Planner 

15



Attachment A 

Recommended Conditions of Consent

16



CONDITIONS OF CONSENT 

SCHEDULE 1 

APPROVED DEVELOPMENT/DESIGN MODIFICATIONS/COVENANTS AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS/USE AND OPERATION 

Note:  Some conditions in Schedule 1 are to be satisfied prior to issue of a Construction 
Certificate and some are to be satisfied prior to issue of Occupation Certificate, where 
indicated. 

(1) APPROVED DEVELOPMENT 

(a) Development must be in accordance with Development Application No. 
D/2019/1074 dated 26 September 2019 and the following drawings: 

Drawing Number Drawing Name Date 
 

D01 Sculpture Location 
Plan 

N.D 

and as amended by the conditions of this consent. 

(b) In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and 
supplementary documentation, the drawings will prevail. 

(2) SCULPTURE MAINTENANCE 

(a) The sculptures and their immediate surrounds shall be maintained in good 

order, on a regular basis, to the satisfaction of Council; 

(b) The sculptures must be regularly inspected and maintained to ensure the 

structural integrity and the aesthetic and functional quality of the structure; 

(c) Graffiti must be removed from the sculptures within 48 hours of its application; 

(d) Any loose or unstable parts of sculptures are to be made good immediately or 

removed from the site;  

(e) Any parts of sculptures that have been removed and discarded are to be 

removed from the site;  

(f) If the sculptures are considered to pose a safety risk, the sculpture must be 

removed immediately.  

(3) LICENCE/LEASE AGREEMENT  

The applicant must ensure that there is an appropriate lease/licence agreement 
with Council for all sculptures located on Council owned land. The agreement must 
include a clause regarding the rectification of public land caused by the movement 
or removal of the sculptures. Upon applying for the lease/license agreement, the 
terms of the agreement must be consulted with the Council’s Public Art Program 
Manager. 

(4) DAMAGE TO COUNCIL PROPERTY  

Any damage, as a consequence of the removal of the sculptures, to the public 
domain is to be for rectified to the satisfaction of Council. 

17



(5) VEHICLE ACCESS 

Vehicle access on streets and roads must be maintained at all times during the 
removal of the sculptures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



SCHEDULE 2 

GENERAL TERMS OF APPROVAL  

The Terms of Approval for Integrated Development as advised by NSW Heritage Council are 
as follows: 

APPROVED DEVELOPMENT  
 

1. Development must be in accordance with:  

 

a) Report, ‘Walsh Bay Sculpture Walk’ prepared by Stephen Bradley, Manager, 
Corporate Affairs and Art, Transfield Holdings, dated 17 September 2019.  

 

b) Letter, ‘Re Walsh Bay Sculpture Walk: Development Application to consolidate the 6 
(six) existing Development Applications into 1 (one) DA’ prepared by Stephen Bradley, 
Manager, Corporate Affairs and Art, Transfield Holdings, dated 17 September 2019.  

 
EXCEPT AS AMENDED by the following conditions of this approval:  
 
COMPLIANCE  
 
2. If requested, the applicant and any nominated heritage consultant may be required to 
participate in audits of Heritage Council of NSW approvals to confirm compliance with 
conditions of consent.  

 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed works are completed as approved.  
 

SECTION 60 APPLICATION  
 
3. An application under section 60 of the Heritage Act 1977 must be submitted to, and 
approved by, the Heritage Council of NSW (or delegate), prior to work commencing.  

Reason: To meet legislative requirements. 

ADVICE  
 
Section 148 of the Heritage Act 1977 (the Act), allows people authorised by the Minister to 
enter and inspect, for the purposes of the Act, with respect to buildings, works, relics, 
moveable objects, places or items that is or contains an item of environmental heritage. 
Reasonable notice must be given for the inspection.  

If you have any questions regarding the above approval please contact Shikha Jhaldiyal, 
Senior Heritage Assessment Officer, at the Heritage NSW Department of Premier and 
Cabinet Heritage, on 9873 8545 or shikha.jhaldiyal@environment.nsw.gov.au. 

 

 

 

 

 

19



SCHEDULE 3 

PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS 

The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 apply: 

Clause 98  Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements 
under the Home Building Act 1989 

Clause 98A Erection of signs 

Clause 98B Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements 

Clause 98C Conditions relating to entertainment venues 

Clause 98D Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage 

Clause 98E Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property 

Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 8A of the 
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. This can be accessed at: 
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au 

 

 

 

20

http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au/


Attachment B 

Sculpture Location Plan

21



1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Tr
i

Tr
an

sn
ew

fi
e

ld

R
ed

 Y
el

lo
w

 
B

lu
e

In
to

 t
h

e 
Tr

ee
s 

II Th
e 

C
h

an
ge

Th
re

e
 S

is
te

rs

St
ill

 L
if

e 
w

it
h

 
St

o
n

e 
an

d
 

C
ar

; A
rt

w
o

rk
 

si
gn

s

Sc
u

lp
tu

re
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

7

5

6

1

3

4

2

N

D
ra

w
in

g 
n

o
 D

0
1

22



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Report to the Local Planning Panel - Status of Applications 

File No: X019228 

Summary 

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Local Planning Panel (LPP) of the 
applications that are to be reported to the LPP; applications that have been subject to 
modification applications and appeals of applications determined by the LPP.  

Attachment A contains a list of applications due to be determined by the LPP. The list 
includes the application's reference number, address of the proposal, the description of the 
proposal, the target meeting date and the reason why the application is referred to the LPP 
for determination.  

Attachment B contains a summary of Land and Environment Court appeal information 
relating to applications determined by the LPP or appeals related to deemed refusals of 
applications that would have been determined by the LPP.  

Attachment C contains a list of applications for modification lodged in second quarter 
2019/20 on previous LPP approvals. 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that the subject report be received and noted.  

Attachments 

Attachment A. Applications to be Reported to Local Planning Panel. 

Attachment B. Appeals Related to the Local Planning Panel 

Attachment C. List of Modifications Applications Related to Local Planning Panel 
Approvals  

  

1

Item 5.



Local Planning Panel 26 February 2020 
 

Background 

1. There are currently 40 development applications lodged with the City that are to be 
considered and determined by the LPP (as at 31 January 2020). The list includes 
applications on the agenda for both February meetings. The application list is sorted 
by target meeting date. The list is provided at  Attachment A. 

2. Details of new Land and Environment Court appeals that relate to LPP decisions or 
applications that were due to be determined by the LPP but were subject of a deemed 
refusal appeal are provided at Attachment B. Additionally, on-going or completed 
matters will have the status or outcome listed in the table (as at 4 February 2020). 

3. There were five modifications lodged in the second quarter of 2019/20 related to LPP 
approvals. Three remain under assessment. The list is provided at Attachment C.  

Relevant Legislation 

4. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

GRAHAM JAHN, AM 

Director, City Planning, Development and Transport 

James Farrar, Administration Officer 

2



Attachment A 

Applications to be Reported to the Local 

Planning Panel 

 

3



Applications to be reported to the Local Planning Panel 

Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for LPP 
determination 

D/2019/1135               13-15 Kellett Street  
POTTS POINT  NSW  
2011 

Use of the ground level as a restricted premises in conjunction with the 
existing licensed bar and restaurant known as 'Dollhouse Nightspot', 
with hours of operation of 24 hours, 7 days per week. The application 
includes alterations to the external rear courtyard wall to provide 
emergency egress. The site has a rear frontage to Mansion Lane. 

05/02/2020 Sensitive development 

D/2019/1176               122-124 Flinders Street  
DARLINGHURST  NSW  
2010 

Use public footway on South Dowling Street for outdoor seating in 
association with licensed premises ‘The Taphouse’. The proposed 
outdoor dining area comprises 20.8 square meters of area. Proposed 
hours of use are 12.00 midday – 9.30pm, Monday to Sunday inclusive. 

05/02/2020 Conflict of Interest.  

D/2019/189                45 Amy Street  
ERSKINEVILLE  NSW  
2043 

Demolition of existing dwelling and construction of a two storey 
boarding house with attic space within rear roof dormer and two front 
dormers. Boarding house consists of eight boarding rooms and two 
motorcycle and bicycle parking. 

05/02/2020 Contentious development 

D/2019/726                2 Edward Street  
PYRMONT  NSW  2009 

Additional end of trip facilities, changes to lobby entrance and upgrades 
to the facade including replacement of the existing awning and 
additional signage. Internal works to an existing cafe. 

05/02/2020 Contentious development 

D/2019/1242               12 Toxteth Road  
GLEBE  NSW  2037 

Amendment of existing approved development for alterations and 
additions to existing dwelling and construction of rear garage and 
studio. The amendments include increase in width of the rear garage 
and studio, re-configuration of garage windows and doors, repositioning 
of swimming pool and  inclusion of new basement below the approved 
garage and studio.  

05/02/2020 Contentious development 

D/2019/1229               57 Reservoir Street  
SURRY HILLS    2010 

Alterations and additions to the existing brothel, including a first floor 
rear extension 

26/02/2020 Sensitive development 

4



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for LPP 
determination 

D/2019/412                86 Foveaux Street  
SURRY HILLS  NSW  
2010 

Alterations and additions to the existing building, including a second 
floor addition, landscaped roof terrace, repairs to a balcony onto Corben 
Street and Strata Subdivision of the site. 

26/02/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

 

D/2019/663                13 Brodrick Street  
CAMPERDOWN  NSW  
2050 

Demolition of existing commercial building and construction of a new 
four storey boarding house comprising of 10 studios, a communal area 
on the ground floor and associated landscaping. 

26/02/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2018/774                589-591 Elizabeth Street  
REDFERN  NSW  2016 

Demolition of all structures on site, earthworks, site remediation, 
construction of a 4 storey building for use as hotel accommodation, 
basement car park and ancillary licensed cafe.   

18/03/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/1339               174-176A George Street  
SYDNEY  NSW  2000 

Construction of the George Street Public Plaza; associated canopy 
artwork;  new 3 storey Plaza Building for use as a cafe and flexible 
community space with a rooftop viewing terrace; and a new link bridge 
from the plaza to the tower lobby over Crane Lane. 

18/03/2020 Conflict of interest 

D/2019/291                57 Ashmore Street  
ERSKINEVILLE  NSW  
2043 

Integrated development application under the Water Management Act 
2000. The proposal (at 'Block D') is for site preparation works and 
demolition of existing structures, construction of six, 2 storey plus attic 
terrace houses with roof top terraces, excavation for one basement 
level within each terrace to accommodate a car stacker, storage area 
and media room. The proposal includes subdivision, tree removal, and 
public domain works including new roads. 

18/03/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

5



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for LPP 
determination 

D/2018/1581               135-139 McEvoy Street  
ALEXANDRIA  NSW  2015 

Proposed demolition of existing building and construction of 6 storey 
building to McEvoy Street, and a 4 storey building to the rear 
comprising 34 residential apartments, ground floor commercial tenancy 
and 2 levels of basement car parking accessed from McEvoy Street. 
The proposal is Integrated Development under the Water Management 
Act 2000, requiring the approval of Water NSW. 

18/03/2020 Sensitive development 
VPA 

D/2019/1091               2-4 Oxford Street  
DARLINGHURST  NSW  
2010 

Alterations to the Burdekin Hotel including a new rooftop restaurant and 
bar to existing rooftop level to accommodate 85 patrons. Proposed 
hours of operation of the rooftop are 8.00am to 10.00pm Monday to 
Thursday, 8.00am to 12.00 midnight Fridays and Saturdays and 
10.00am to 10.00pm Sunday.  No change is proposed to the existing 
approved maximum number of patrons to the hotel. 

18/03/2020 Contentious development 

D/2019/1168               38 Princess Avenue  
ROSEBERY  NSW  2018 

Demolition of the existing house and construction of two new three 
storey single dwellings with a garages and first floor studios to the rear. 

18/03/2020 Sensitive development. 
VPA 

D/2019/1234               62 Glebe Point Road  
GLEBE  NSW  2037 

Alterations and additions to existing mixed use building including third 
storey extension, internal reconfiguration and front facade works. 

18/03/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/1246               202-210 Elizabeth Street  
SURRY HILLS  NSW  
2010 

Change of use from approved boarding house to a 38 room hotel with 
internal alterations to facilitate the change of use. 

18/03/2020 Sensitive development. 
VPA 

D/2019/1268               Terrace 1 256 Church 
Street  
NEWTOWN  NSW  2042 

Alterations and additions to an existing single dwelling including 
conversion of existing garage to a bedroom, infill existing garage door 
and extend existing roof terrace above internal level 1 courtyard. 

18/03/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

6



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for LPP 
determination 

D/2019/1358               72-84 Foveaux Street  
SURRY HILLS  NSW  
2010 

Alterations and additions including extension to building footprint, 
external redesign including new facade, internal reconfiguration 
including end of trip facilities at basement level, introduction of lecture 
theatre at lower ground floor level, new entries, staff kitchen and 
canteen at ground floor level and a new roof terrace. 

18/03/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/1361               10-16 Bay Street  
ULTIMO  NSW  2007 

Installation of rooftop solar system. 18/03/2020 Conflict of interest. 
Council is owner 

D/2019/1397               2001 Martin Place  
SYDNEY  NSW  2000 

Retention of  7 concrete spheres and 7 removable bollards for a further 
period of 2 years on the George Street frontage to Martin Place. 

18/03/2020 Conflict of interest 

D/2019/578                22-28 Mandible Street  
ALEXANDRIA  NSW  2015 

Concept development application for a 35 metre high commercial 
building comprising indicative ground floor retail and parking, and 
indicative office use above. 

18/03/2020 Sensitive development 
VPA 

D/2019/621                21 Kellett Street  
POTTS POINT  NSW  
2011 

Demolition of existing single storey 3 space car garage. Construction of 
a new six storey boarding house with 8 rooms and communal outdoor 
living/kitchen on the top floor. 

18/03/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/665                21C Billyard Avenue  
ELIZABETH BAY  NSW  
2011 

Alterations and additions to an existing residential flat building at 10 
Onslow Avenue, comprising an additional level to create a new living 
space and outdoor terrace to apartment No. 11. 

18/03/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/732                15 O'Riordan Street  
ALEXANDRIA  NSW  2015 

Demolition and construction of Ausgrid network management facility 18/03/2020 Sensitive development 
VPA 

7



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for LPP 
determination 

D/2019/811                385 Wattle Street  
ULTIMO  NSW  2007 

Demolition of existing building and construction of new part four / part 
five storey mixed use building comprising ground floor retail and student 
accommodation on all levels (72 boarding rooms total). The proposal 
includes excavation, remediation, the construction of one basement 
level providing 18 car parking spaces and bike parking, and 
landscaping of the site. 

18/03/2020 Sensitive development 
VPA and departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/1485               40 Forbes Street  
NEWTOWN  NSW  2042 

Site boundary realignment and consolidation of existing 4 Torrens title 
lots into 3 Torrens title lots; alterations to existing 2 storey dwelling; 
demolition of existing garage. 

08/04/2020 Contentious development 

D/2019/854                171A Euston Road  
ALEXANDRIA  NSW  2015 

Modifications to existing concrete batching plant including increase in 
annual total production from 450,000 to 525,000 tonnes per year (5,000 
tonnes per day), construction of a two storey truck parking lot, additional 
batching house and other alterations within the site. The proposed 
upgrade is to operate 24/7 (as per DU/1999/798/A for a trial period). 
The proposal is Designated Development under the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Regulations 2000, and is Integrated 
Development under the Protection of the Environmental Operations Act 
1997 and Water Management Act 2000, requiring a licence and 
approval from the NSW Environment Protection Authority, and approval 
from Water NSW. 

08/04/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/1416               1 Woolley Street  
GLEBE  NSW  2037 

Alterations and additions to existing three storey residential flat building 
including removal of external stairs, new balconies and waste room to 
rear, security gate to driveway, internal works and landscaping. 

08/04/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/880                1-3 Goddard Street  
ERSKINEVILLE  NSW  
2043 

Four-storey boarding house development, containing 37 boarding 
rooms inclusive of on-site managers room, new basement level, with 
associated site works and landscaping. 

08/04/2020 Contentious development 

8



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for LPP 
determination 

D/2019/1159               94-104 Epsom Road  
ZETLAND  NSW  2017 

Tree removal, excavation, remediation, shoring and piling to facilitate 
the future construction of three 4 to 14 storey mixed use buildings with 2 
basement levels proposed under Development Application D/2019/976 
and which is being assessed at the same time. This application is for 
Integrated Development and requires the approval of Water NSW under 
the Water Management Act 2000. 

29/04/2020 Conflict of Interest 

D/2019/1082               1049 Bourke Street  
WATERLOO  NSW  2017 

Concept DA seeking in principle approval for demolition and for a 
concept building envelope to a height of approximately 22m, with 
indicative basement car-parking, ground level retail, servicing and 
accommodation entries and boarding rooms on upper levels. This 
application is for Integrated Development requiring the approval of 
Water NSW under the Water Management Act 2000. 

29/04/2020 Sensitive development 
VPA 

D/2019/684                634 Botany Road  
ALEXANDRIA  NSW  2015 

Concept Development Application seeking in-principle approval for 
demolition of existing buildings, and for a concept building envelope to a 
height of 24.47m for ground floor shops, shop top housing, road 
widening and publicly accessible through site link and vehicular access 
to Ralph Street.  This application is Integrated Development requiring 
approval under the Water Management Act 2000. 

29/04/2020 Sensitive development 
VPA and departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/1195               5-7 Bourke Road  
ALEXANDRIA  NSW  2015 

RENOTIFICATION with amended plans depicting changes to the 
facade, basement excavation and end of trip. Demolition of existing 
structures and construction of a nine (9) storey commercial building, 
containing car parking at Basement Level and Level 1, ground shop 
uses, and office and business accommodation above. The application is 
Integrated Development under the Water Management Act 2000 and 
Water Act 1912, requiring approval of Water NSW (Department of 
Primary Industries). 

29/04/2020 Sensitive development. 
VPA 

9



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for LPP 
determination 

D/2019/1407               16-18 Broadway  
CHIPPENDALE  NSW  
2008 

Change of use to small bar and associated fit out of basement level. 
Proposed hours of operation are 7:00am to 1:00am Sunday to 
Thursday and 7:00am to 3:00am Friday and Saturday. 

29/04/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/1470               274-276 Glebe Point Road  
GLEBE  NSW  2037 

Change of use of the existing building to a boarding house and 
associated alterations and additions 

29/04/2020 Conflict of interest 

D/2020/18                 160B Glebe Point Road  
GLEBE  NSW  2037 

Change of use of an existing dwelling to a six room boarding house and 
associated works, including demolition, alterations and additions and fit-
out. 

12/05/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2019/1410               140-144 Parramatta Road  
CAMPERDOWN  NSW  
2050 

Demolition of existing commercial buildings and construction of a mixed 
use development comprising 2 retails premises and 30 dwellings over 1 
level of basement car parking, accessed from Isabella Street via the 
common basement to be shared with the existing serviced apartment. 

20/05/2020 Sensitive development. 
SEPP65 

D/2020/47                 57-65 Darghan Street  
GLEBE  NSW  2037 

Alterations and additions to dwelling house including a new car stacker 
to provide underground parking (4 parking spaces), a new workshop 
structure, installation of 2 air conditioning units to the roof, restoration 
works to the interior and exterior and minor internal alterations.  
 
The application is Integrated Development requiring the approval of the 
Heritage Council under the Heritage Act 1977. 

21/05/2020 Departure from 
development standards 

D/2020/20                 503-505 Elizabeth Street  
SURRY HILLS  NSW  
2010 

Demolition of existing building and construction of a new 7 storey mixed 
use development comprising 1 basement level, ground floor commercial 
use and 11 residential units above. 

01/07/2020 Sensitive development. 
SEPP65 

As at 30/01/2020 

10



Attachment B 

Appeals Related to the Local Planning 

Panel

11



Appeals Related to the Local Planning Panel 

Application 
number 

Address Description Appeal date Status 

Lodged in current reporting quarter 

D/2019/832 47 Crown Street , 
WOOLLOOMOOLOO 

Alterations and additions to two (2) existing semi-
detached residential dwellings and construction of a 
four-storey residential flat building. 

17/12/2019 
 

Appealed 27 days 
after determination 

Appeal of LPP refusal 
20/11/2019 
 
Listed for conciliation 
conference on 23/6/20 

D/2019/517 191-195 Botany 
Road 
WATERLOO 

Demolition of existing two storey building and car 
park at 195 Botany Road, construction of a 6 storey 
commercial building with ground floor retail and 
basement car parking at 195 Botany Road and 
subdivision. This application is for Integrated 
Development requiring the approval of Water NSW 
under the Water Management Act 2000. 

11/12/2019 

Appeal on day 205 
of assessment  

 

Deemed refusal appeal 
 
Listed for conciliation 
conference on 21/8/20 

D/2019/616 22 Ada Place 
ULTIMO 

Alterations and additions to existing dwelling 
including construction of a new first floor addition at 
the rear and attic conversion with front dormer and 
rear roof addition. 

30/12/2019 
 
Appeal on day 211 
of assessment  

Deemed refusal appeal 
 
listed for conciliation 
conference on 17/8/20 

 

 

 

 

12



Application 
number 

Address Description Appeal date Status 

Lodged prior to current reporting quarter  

D/2019/120 810-812A George 
Street HAYMARKET 

Partial demolition of existing building, retention of 
George Street facade, excavation for one basement 
level, and construction of 15 storey building for use 
as backpackers accommodation. The proposal 
includes 291 dorm beds and 4 double private rooms 
providing for a maximum of 299 guests, a cafe, bar, 
pool, terrace, communal facilities and services. The 
building has been reduced by a storey and reduced 
the maximum occupancy by 12 people. 

 
19/07/2019 

 

Appealed 2 days 
after determination 

Appeal of LPP refusal on 
17/07/2019 

 
 
 
Listed for s.34 on 06/03/20 

D/2019/136 127-131 Macquarie 
Street SYDNEY  

Two illuminated top of building 'Crescent Wealth' 
business signs to be installed on the north and west 
elevations of existing roof structure  

 
07/05/2019  
 
Appeal on day 77 
of assessment  

Deemed refusal appeal  
 

Listed for hearing 18-
19/06/20 

D/2017/1332 278 Palmer Street  
DARLINGHURST   

 

Alterations and additions to the existing building 
including a part one and part two storey addition, 
new basement for storage and services, and change 
of use to a residential flat building containing 10 
apartments and a rooftop terrace. 

 
27/11/2018 

Appeal 20 days 
after determination  

 

Appeal of refusal by LPP 
on 07/11/2018 as per staff 
recommendation  
 
Matter heard on 6-8/11/19.  
 
Appeal dismissed 9/01/20.  
 
Appeal of LEC decision 
lodged 30/01/20 

13



Application 
number 

Address Description Appeal date Status 

D/2018/335 400/65 Cowper 
Wharf Roadway    
WOOLLOOMOOLOO 

Alterations and additions to an existing mixed-use 
building to include a green roof for the Level 4, 
Penthouse apartment. 

12/11/2018 

Appeal 33 days 
after determination  

 

Appeal of refusal by LPP 
on 10/10/2018 as per staff 
recommendation 

Listed for hearing on 5-
6/02/20 

D/2018/525 137-153 Crown 
Street         
DARLINGHURST 

Alterations and additions to existing commercial 
premises including construction of fourth floor and 
internal alterations and change of use of ground floor 
to retail. Proposed trading hours are 7.00am – 
6.00pm, Mondays to Sundays inclusive. 

15/10/2018 

Appeal on day 150 
of assessment  

 

Deemed refusal appeal  
 
Listed for hearing on 12-
13/3/20. 

D/2017/1606 42 Hardie Street 
DARLINGHURST 

Alterations and additions to the existing building for 
the construction of a part-4, part-5 and part-6 storey 
mixed-use development containing basement 
storage and services; ground floor retail space and 
an apartment; and aboveground apartments.  Seven 
apartments are proposed.  Pedestrian access is 
proposed from Hardie Street.  No car parking is 
proposed. 

 

 

 

 

 

29/05/2018 

Appeal on day 191 
of assessment  

 

Deemed refusal appeal  
 
Listed for hearing on 18-
19/3/20.  
 

14



Application 
number 

Address Description Appeal date Status 

Completed appeals in current reporting quarter 

D/2018/875 86-92 Harris Street 
PYRMONT  

Partial excavation of the site and construction of a 
five storey commercial building with two basement 
levels of car parking.  

21/12/2018  

Appeal on day 143 
of assessment  

Judgment handed down 
2/10/2019.  
 
Appeal upheld on amended 
plans following s.34 
agreement.  
 

D/2018/1407 17-19 Dunning 
Avenue ROSEBERY  

Alterations and additions to the existing building to 
construct a 4 storey commercial building  

11/01/2019  
Appeal on day 52 
of assessment  
 

Judgment handed down on 
16/10/19. Appeal upheld on 
amended plans. 

 

D/2019/226 9 Power Avenue    
ALEXANDRIA 

Alterations and additions to the existing commercial 
building including addition of a 3rd storey 

26/04/2019 

Appeal on day 48 
of assessment 

Deemed refusal appeal 
 
Appeal upheld 11/10/2019 
 
 
 

D/2018/1605 9 Power Avenue     
ALEXANDRIA 

Demolition of existing commercial building, 
construction of new 4 story residential apartment 
building containing 14 apartments and associated 
bicycle parking and storage 

01/03/2019 
 
Appeal on day 70 
of assessment  

 

Deemed refusal appeal 
 
Matter heard on 13/11/19.  
 
Appeal upheld 29/11/19 

15



Application 
number 

Address Description Appeal date Status 

D/2018/1314 22-38 Yurong Street , 
DARLINGHURST 

Integrated Development for alterations and additions 
to an approved mixed use development 
(D/2015/421) to convert part of the retained 
commercial building into 4 apartments and 1 
live/work apartment. Alterations to approved 
basement including additional excavation and a car 
stacker for 5 additional cars. The application has 
been amended to include air-conditioning units on 
the lower and upper roof.  

21/01/2019 
 
Appeal on day 83 
of assessment 

Deemed refusal appeal 
 

Judgement handed down 
on 29/11/2019 
 
Appeal upheld 
 

D/2017/1426 27 Church Street 
CAMPERDOWN 

Demolition of existing building and construction of a 
three storey plus attic level residential flat building 
comprising five apartments with terraces. 

27/09/2018 Refused by LPP as per 
staff recommendation 
28/03/2018  
 
Appeal upheld on amended 
plans. 20/12/2019 

As at 04/02/2020 

16



Attachment C 

List of Modification Applications Related to 

Local Planning Panel Approvals 

 

17



List of Modification Applications lodged on Local Planning Panel Approvals 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
As at 31/01/2020 

Application 
number 

Address Description Lodgement date Status 

D/2018/1305/A             208-218 Riley Street 
SURRY HILLS 

S4.55 (1) modification of consent  for demolition of the existing 
podium of the Cambridge Hotel in the eastern portion of the site, early 
works and basement excavation. Delete conditions public domain 
conditions 2, 6 and 7 as they are replicated in  D/2018/1451 for the 
construction of the new hotel. 

23/10/2019 Approved 

D/2018/156/B              19 Ralph Street 
ALEXANDRIA 

Section 4.55(1A) modification of consent for demolition of existing 
building and construction of 6 storey mixed use development 
comprising 18 apartments, ground floor retail tenancy and car parking 
spaces. Proposed changes include modifcations to reconfigure 
ground level bicycle storage and car parking areas. 

27/11/2019 Approved 

D/2018/1615/B             132-138 McEvoy 
Street 
 ALEXANDRIA 

S4.55(1A) modification of consent for mixed use development. 
Proposed modifications include relocating deferred commencement 
condition (3)(e) Gate detail approval to the operational conditions and 
deletion of condition (44) Signage Strategy. 

08/11/2019 Approved 

D/2016/1641/A             5010 Farrer Place 
SYDNEY 

S4.55 Amendments to the proposed design, including Condition 1 
(approved plans). 

19/12/2019 Under 
assessment 

D/2018/1451/A             208-218 Riley Street 
SURRY HILLS 

Section 4.55 (1A) of consent for minor external and internal alterations 
including relocation of the lift core, changes to approved fenestration, 
materials and facade planting and internal alterations including 
lowering of the loading dock level, reconfiguration of the basement 
and ground floor. 

07/11/2019 Under 
assessment 

18


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes
	2 Disclosures of Interest
	3 Development Application: 397 Glebe Point Road, Glebe - D/2019/1325
	Attachment A - Recommended Conditions of Consent
	Attachment B - Selected Drawings

	4 Development Application: Various Sites - 21-21A Hickson Road, 23 Hickson Road, 4030 Hickson Road, 4020 Towns Place Millers Point, 3-5 Pottingers Street Dawes Point - D/2019/1074
	Attachment A - Recommended Conditions Of Consent
	Attachment B -  Sculpture Location Plan

	5 Report to the Local Planning Panel - Status of Applications
	Attachment A - Applications to be Reported to the Local Planning Panel
	Attachment B - Appeals Related to the Local Planning Panel
	Attachment C - List of Modifications Applications Related to Local Planning Panel Approvals




